BEFORE THE
BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY AND BARBER EXAMINERS

STATE OF MISSOURI

BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY AND )
BARBER EXAMINERS, )
)
Petitioner, )

) No. 17-0242
Vi )
)
BRANDON PERRY, )
)
Respondent. )

- JOINT MOTION FOIRR CONSENT ORDER, :
JOINT STIPULATION OF FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS QF LAW,
~ WAIVER OF HEARING
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY AND BARBER EXAMINERS,
AND DISCIPLINARY ORDER

Respondent Brandon Perry (“Respondent”) and Petitioner Board of Cosmetology and Barber
Examirers (“Board™) enter into this Joint Motion for Consent Order, Joint Stipulation of Facts and
Conclusions of Law, Waiver of Hearing Before the Board of Cosmetology and Barber Examiners,
and Disciplinary Order (“Joint Stipulation”) for the purpose of resolving the disciplinary proceeding
against Respondent, Pursuant to the terms of § 536.060, RSMo, the parties move for a consent order
and waive the right to & hearing and decision in the above-styled case by the Board pursuant to
§§ 328,150.3 and 621.110, RSMo, and jointly stipulate and agree that a final disposition of this
matter may be effectuated as deseribed below,

Respondent acknowledges that he is aware of and understands the various rights and
privilegeé afforded him by law, including: 1) the right to a hearing of the charges against him; 2) the
right to appear and be represented by iegal counsel; 3) the right to have all charges against him
proven upon the record by competent and substantial evidence; 4) the right to cross-examine any

wiiness appearing at the hearing against him; 5) the right to present evidence on his behalf at the
1

ot e b T,

A



hearing; 6) the right to a decision upon the record of the hearing by the Board conceming the
complaint pending against him; 7) the right to a ruling on questions of law by the Board; 8) the right
to seek recovery of attorneys’ fees and expenses; and 9) the right to obtain judicial review of this
Joint Stipulation. Being aware of these rights provided him by operation of law, Respondent
knowingly and voluntarily waives each and every one of these rights and freely enters into this Joint
Stipulation. Respondent further agrees to abide by the terms of this document as they pertain to him.

Respondent acknowledges that he received a copy of the Complaint in this case, which was
filed by the Board with the Administrative Hearing Commission (“AHC”) on March 2, 2017; the
AHC’s default decision issued on June 21, 2017; and the Board"s notice of disciplinary hearing
dated August 10, 2017. Respondent acknowledges that the Board’s disciplinary hearing was held on
November 13, 2017, and Respondent failed to appear at that hearing. After hearing, in Findings of
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Disciplinary Order dated March 19, 2018, the Board detexmined to
revoke Respondent’s barber operator and establisbment licenses. On April 16, 2018, Respondent
filed a Petition for Judicial Review in the Circuit Court of Boone County, Case No. 18 BA-
CV01431, and Respondent obtained an order staying enforcement of the Board’s Order revoking
Respondent’s licenses from the Circuit Court of Boone County on April 17, 2018.

The Board and Respondent hereby stipulate to the withdrawal of the Board’s revocation of
Respondent’s licenses. Respondent stipulates that the factual atlegations contained in this Joint
Stipulation are true and stipulates with the Board that his barber operator license (No. 007048) and
barber establishment license (No. 003770) are subject to further disciplinary action by the Board in

accordance with the provisions of §§ 328.150.3 and 621.110, RSMo.



I. JOINT STIPULATION

Based upon the foregoing, the Board and Respondent jointly stipulate to the following
findings of fact and conclusions of law.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1, The Board of Cosmetology and Barber Examiners is an agency of the State of
Missowri created and established pursuant to § 329.015, RSMo, and § 328.015, RSMo, for the
purpose of executing and enforcing the provisions of Chapters 328 and 329, RSMo,

2. Respondent holds a barber operator license, license number 007048, which was
issued by the Board. Respondent’s barber operator license is current and active, but it was expired
from on or about September 30, 2015 to on or about June 7, 2016.

3. Respondent operatos a barber establishment, doing business as Something New Hair
Clinic (“Something New™), license number 003770, located at 416 East Broadway, Columbia,
Missouri 65201,

4, Respondent’s establishment license expired on or about Septerober 30, 2015 and was
not renewed until March 14, 2017,

5. Jutisdiction and venue are proper before the Board pursuant to §§ 328.150.3 and
621.110, RSMo.

6. On or about April 26, 2016, the Board’s inspector conducted an inspection at
Something New. The establishment was open, and Respondent was presént at the time of the
inspection,

7. At the time of the April 26, 2016 inspection, Respondent’s expired barber operator

and establishment licenses were posted in public view.



8. The Board’s April 26, 2016 inspection revealed the following violations: Respondent
was providing and/or offering to provide barber services at the establishment while his establishment
and operator licenses were expired and with expired establishment and operator licenses posted in
violation of § 328.020, RSMo, § 328.115, R8Mo, 20 CSR 2085-5.040, 20 CSR 2085-10.010, and 20
CSR 2085-10.060.

9. On or about May 12, 2016, the Board sent Respondent a violation notice regarding
the April 26, 2016 inspection.

10.  On or about June 2, 2016, the Board’s inspector conducted an inspection at
Something New. The establishment was open, and Respondent was presenf at the time of the
inspection.

11.  Atthetime of the June 2, 2016 inspection, Respondent’s expired batber operator and
establishment licenses were posted in public view.

12.  The Board’s June 2, 2016 inspection revealed the following violations: Respondent
was providing and/or offering to provide barber services at the establishment while his establishment
and operator licenses were expired and with expired establishment and operator licenses posted in
violation of § 328,020, RSMo, § 328.115, RSMo, 20 CSR 2085-5.040, 20 CSR 2085-10.010,and 20
CSR 2085-10.060.

13.  Onorabout June 14, 2016, the Board sent Respondent a violation notice regarding
the June 2, 2016 inspection,

14.  On or about June 22, 2016, the Board’s inspector conducted an inspection at
Something New. The establishment was open, and Respondent was present at the time: of the

inspection.
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15.  Atthetime of June 22, 2016 inspection, Respondent’s expired establishment license
was posteﬁ in public view.

16.  TheBoard’s June 22, 2016 inspection revealed the following violations: Respondent
was providing and/or offering to provide barber services at the establishment while his establishment
license was expired and posted in violation of § 328.115, RSMo, 20 CSR 2085-10.010,and 20 CSR
2085-10.000.

17.  Onor about July 7, 2016, the Board sent Respondent a violation notice regarding the
June 2 and June 22, 2016 inspections,

18.  On or about July 27, 2016, the Board’s inspector conducted an inspection at
Something New. The establishment was open, and Respondent was present at the time of the
inspec#ion.

19, Atthetime of July 27, 2016 inspection, Respondent’s expired establishment license
was posted in public view,

20.  TheBoard’s July 27, 2016 inspection revealed the following violations: Respondent

was providing and/or offering to provide barber services at the establishment while his establishment

license was expired and posted in violation of § 328,115, RSMo, 20 CSR 2085-10.010, and 20 CSR

2085-10.0690.
21.  Onorabout August 4, 2016, the Board sent Respondent a violation notice regarding

the July 27, 2016 inspection.

22.  On or about August 24, 2016, the Board’s inspector conducted an inspection at

Something New. The establishment was open, and Respondent was present at the time of the

inspectiort.
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23. At the time of August 24, 2016 inspection, Respondent’s expired establishment
license was posted in public view.

24.  The Board’s August 24, 2016 inspection revealed the following violations:
Respondent was providing and/or offering to provide barber services at the establishment while his
establishment license was expired and posted in violation of § 328.115, RSMo, 20 CSR 2085-
10.010, and 20 CSR 2085-10.060.

25.  On or about September 7, 2016, the Board sent Respondent a violation notice
regarding the August 24, 2016 inspection.

26.  On or about October 13, 2016, the Board’s inspector conducted an inspection at
Something New, The establishment was open, and Respondent was present at the time of the
inspection.

27. At the time of Qctober 13, 2016 inspecition, Respondent’s expired establishment
license was posted in public view.

28,  The Board’s October 13, 2016 inspection revealed t‘he following violations:
Respondent was providing and/or offering to provide barber services at the establishment while his
establishment license was expired and posted in violation of § 328.115, RSMo, 20 CSR 2085-
10.010, and 20 CSR 2085-10.060.

29.  On or about November 14, 2016, the Board sent Respondent a violation notice
regarding the October 13, 2016 inspection.

30.  Onor about December 13, 2016, the Board’s inspector conducted an inspection at
Something New. The establishment was open, and Respondent was present at the time of the

inspection.
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31.  Atthe time of December 13, 2016 inspection, Respondent’s expired establishment
license was posted in public view.

19.  The Board’s December 13, 2016 inspection revealed the following violations:
Respondent was providing and/or offering to provide barber services at the establishment while his
establishment Heense was expited and posted in violation of § 328.115, RSMo, 20 CSR 2085-
10.010, and 20 CSR 2085-10.660.

13, Onorabout January 11,2017, the Board sent Respondent a violation notice regarding
the December 13, 2016 inspection.

34.  On or about February 22, 2017, the Board’s inspector conducted an inspection at
Something New. The establishment was open, and Respon.dent was present at the time of the
inspection,

35. At the time of Rebruary 22, 2017 inspection, Respondent’s expired establishment
license was posted in public view,

36. The Board’s Pebruary 22, 2017 inspection revealed the following violations:
Respondent was providing and/or offering to provide barber services at the establishment while his
establishment license was expited and posted in violation of § 328,115, RSMo, 20 CSR 2085-
10.010, and 20 CSR 2085-10.060.

37, Respondent engaged in misrepresentation and dishonesty by continuing to practice after
receiving multiple inspections and violation reports from the Board stating that both of his licenses
were expired. Keaping the establishment open and performing services on patrons knowing that he
did not have the proper licensure was dishonest and a misrepresentation to the public. Mr, Perry was

representing himself fo the public as a barber knowing that his license was expired.
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38.

39.

49,

41.

42,

Section 328.115.1, RSMo, states, in relevant part:

The owner of every establishment in which the occupation of
barbering is practiced shall obtain a license for such

establishment issued by the board before batbering is practiced -

therein[.]

Section 328.010(2), RSMo, defines a barber establishment as follows:

“Barber establishment”, that part of any building wherein or
whereupon any occupation of barbering is being practiced
including any space or barber chair rented within a licensed
establishment by a person licensed under this chapter, for the
purpose of rendering barbering services[. ]

Section 328.020, RSMo, states:

" It shall be untawful for any person to practice the oconpation of
- abarber in this state, uniess he or she shall have first obtained a

license, as provided in this chapter.
Regulation 20 C8R 2085-5.040(2)(C) states:

Any licensee who fails to renew shall not perform or offer to
perform any act for which a license is required.

Regulation 20 CSR 2085-10.010 states, in relevant part:

Sk

{3) Display of License, Establishment licenses shall be
posted within the establishment in plain view at all
times so that it may be easily seen by the public.
Establishment licenses issued to a station ot booth
rental establishment shall be posted in plain view at the
respective work station. -

(A)Operator licenses, apprentice licenses, or student
temporaty permits shall either be posted at each
respective assigned work station or all posted together
in one (1) conspicuous, readily accessible, central
location within the establishment area that will allow
easy identification of the persons wotking in the
establishinent by clients, board representatives, or the
genegal public,
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(B) A two inch square (2" x 2") photograph taken within
the last five (5) years shall be attached to operatox
licenses, A two inch square (2" x 2") photograph taken
within the last five (5) years shall be attached fo
apprentice licenses and student temporary permits.

(4) Renewals and Reinstatements,

(A) Al existing, currently licensed establishments in
Missouri shall submit on or before the renewal date, a
completed establishment renewal application to the
board with the biennial renewal fee, Renewal notices
arc sent out by the board as a courtesy. It is the
responsibility of the holder(s) of the establishment
license to renew the license by the expiration date.
Failure to receive a renewal notice does not relieve the
holder(s) of this responsibility.

(B)Reinstatement of License. The holder(s) of an
establishment license which has not been renewed by
the renewal date shall be required to submit a {ate fecin
addition to the biennial renewal fee in order to reinstate
the license, The holder(s) of the establishment license
who continues to operate although the license has not
been renewed shall be subject to disciplinary action for
operating an uulicensed establishment if the
establishment license is not reinstated within fourteen
(14) days following the mailing of a notice to the
holdex(s) or sixty (60) days from the renewal deadline,
whichever is later, for operating an establishment
without a license.

43, Regulation 20 CSR 2085-10.060 states, in relevant part:

ey

Pursuant to Chapters 328 and 329, RSMo, no batber or
cosmetology establishment owner, manager, ot
proprietor shall permit any person who does not hold a
current Missouri barber or cosmetology license to
practice as a barber or cosmetologist in the
establishment. No license or permit issued by the board
shall be posted in a licensed establishment unless the
license or permit is current and active, and the licensee
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or permit holder is an employee of the establishment or
holds a curtent and active renter establishment license
issued by the board.

(2) License Posted. BEvery licensed barber and
cosmetologist shafl post a current license issued by the
board in front of the barber’s working chair or the

cosmetologist’s work station where it shall be readily
seen by all patrons.

(3)  Prohibited Practices Within An Establishment. In a

licensed establishment, only persons properly licensed

by the board shall be allowed to perform barbering,

hairdressing, manicuting, or esthetician services on any

persori withhrthe establishment. The provisions of this

section shall apply éven if services 4ie bsing provided

for no compensation[.]
44.  Respondent’s conduct constitutes a violation of Chapter 328, RSMo, and lawful
. regulations adopted pursuant to Chapter 328, RSMo, inclluding § 328.115, RSMo, § 328.020, RSMo,
20 CSR 2085-5.040, 20 CSR 2085-10.010, and 20 CSR 2085-10.060, for which the Board has cause
to take disciplinary action against Respondent’s barber operator and establishment licenses pursuant
to § 328.150.2(6), RSMo.

45.  Respondent’s conduct constitutes misconduct, misrepresentation and/or dishonesty in
the performance of the functions and/or duties of a barber for which the Board has cause to take
disciplinaty action against Respondent’s barber operator and establishment licenses pursuant to §
328.150.2(5), RSMo.

46,  Respondent’s conduct constitutes a violation of a professional trust and/or confidence

for which the Board has cause to take disciplinary action against Respondent’s barber operator and

establishment Heenses pursuant to § 328.150.2(13), RSMo.
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47. By providing and/or offering to provide barber services at Something New while his
establishment and operator licenses were expired and with expired establishment and operator
licenses posted, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action against Respondent’s barber operator
and establishment licenses i)ursuant to § 328.150.2(12), RSMo.

48.  Cause exists for the Board to take disciplinary action against Respondent’s barber
operator and establishment licenses under § 328.150.2(5), (6), (12), and (13), RSMo, which states in

pertinent part;

The board may cause a complaint to be filed with the
administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter 621,
RSMo, against any holder of any certificate of registration or
authority, permit or license requited by this chapter or any
person who has failed to renew or has surrendered his
certificate of registration or authority, permit or license for any
one or any combination of the following causes:

ey

(5) Incompetency, misconduct, gross negligence, fraud,
mistepresentation or dishonesty in the performance of
the functions or duties of any profession licensed or
regulated by this chapter;

(6) Violation of, or assisting or enabling any petson to
violate, any provision of this chapfer, or of any lawful
rule ot regulation adopted pursuant to this chapter;

(12) Failure to display a valid certificate or license if so
requited by this chapter or any rule promulgated .
hereunder;

(13) Violation of any professional trust or confidence[.]
IL JOINT DISCIPLINARY ORDER

Based on the foregoing, the parties hereby mutnally agree and stipulate that the following

shall constitute the Order regarding discipline of Respondent’s barber operator and establishment
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licenses, subject {o the following terms and conditions, and entered by the Board in this matter
undey the authority of §§ 328.150.3 and 621,110, RSMo. This disciplinary order shall become
effective immediately upon the issuance of the consent order of the Board without further action
by either party:
f. Probatign. Respondent’s barber operator license (No. 007048) and batber
establishment license (No. 003770) are hereby placed on PROBATION for FIVE (5) YEARS. The
period of probation is referred to hereinafter as “the disciplinary period.” During the disciplinary
period, Respondent shall be entitled to practice as a barber operator and establishment provided he
pays all required fees, maintaivs his licenses current and active, and adheres to all the terms stated
herein. During the disciplinary period:
A. Respondent shall meet with the Board or its representatives at such times and places
as required by the Board after notification of a required meeting.
B. Respondent shatl keep the Board apprised of his curtent home and work addresses
and telephone numbers. Respondent shall inform the Board within ten days of any change of
home or work address and home or wotk telephone number.
C. Respondent shall comply with all provisions of Chapters 328 and 329, RSMo; all
applicable federal and state drug laws, rules, and regulations; and all federal and state
criminal laws. “State” here includes the state of Missouri and all other states and territories
of the United States.
D. During the disciplinary period, Respondent shall timely renew his licenses and timely
pay all fees required for licensing and comply with all other boalﬂ'requirements necessary to

maintain Respondent’s licenses in a current and active state.
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E. If at any time during the disciplinary period, Respondent removes from the state of
Missourt, ceases to be currently licensed under provisions of Chapter 328, or fails to advise
the Board of Respondent’s current place of business and residence, the time of Respondent’s
absence, unticensed status, or unknown whereabouts shall not be deemed or taken as any part
of the time of discipline so imposed in accordance with § 328.150.3, RSMo.

F. During the disciplinary period, Respondent shall accept and comply with
unannounced visits from the Board’s representatives to monitor Respondent’s compliance

with the terms and conditions of this Joint Stipulation,

2. Upon the expiration of the disciplinary period, the licenses of Respondent shall be fully
restored if all requirements of law have been satisfied; provided, however, that in the event the
Board determines that Respondent has violated any term or condition of this Joint Stipulation, the
Board may, in its discretion, vacate and set aside the discipline imposed herein and impose such
further discipline as it shall deem appropriate, including imposition of revocation.

3. No additional discipline shall be imposed by the Board pursuant to the preceding paragraph
of this Joint Stipulation without notice and opportunity for hearing before the Board as a confested
case in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 536, RSMo. Ifany alleged violation of this Joint
Stipulation ocours during the disciplinaty petiod, the Board may choose to conduct a hearing before
it to determine whether, in fact, a violation occurred and may impose further discipline.

4, This Joint Stipulation does not bind the Board or restrict the remedies available to it
concerning any future violations by Respondent of Chapters 328 and 329, RSMo, or the regulations

promulgated thereunder, or of the terms and conditions of this Joint Stipulation.
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5. This Joint Stipulation docs not bind the Board or restrict the remedies available to it
concerning facts or conduct not specifically mentioned in this Joint Stipulation that are either now
known to the Boatd or may be discovered.

6. If any alleged violation of this Joint Stipulation occurs during the disciplinary period, the
parties agree that the Board may choose to conduct a hearing before it either during the disciplinary
period, ot as soon thereafter as a hearing can be held, to determine whether, in fact, a violation
oceurred and, if so, may impose further disoiplinary action. Respondent agrees and stipulates that
the Board has continuing jurisdiction to hold a hearing to determine if a violation of this Joint
Stipulation has occurred.

7. Each parly agrees to pay all their own fees and exponses incurted as a result of this case, its
litigation, and/or its setflement. Respondent waives any claim to attorney fees under Section
536,087, RSMo.

8. Respondent agrees to dismiss with prejudice the Petition for Judicial Review, filed in the
Circuit Court of Boone County, No. 18BA-CV01431, within five (5) days after the effective date of
this Stipulation.

9. The terms of this Joint Stipulation are contractual, legally enforceable, and binding, not
merely recital. Except as otherwise contained herein, neither this Joint Stipulation nor any of its
provisions may be changex|, waived, discharged, or tetrminated, except by an instrument in writing
signed by the party against whom the enforcement of the change, waiver, dischatge, ot termination is
sought.

10.  The parties to this Joint Stipulation understand that the Board will maintain this Joint

Stipulation as an open tecord as required by Chapters 324, 328, and 6190, RSMo.
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11.  Responder, together with his heirs, assigns, agents, partners, employees, representatives and
attorneys, does hereby waive, release, acquit and fore‘ver discharge the Board, its respective
members, employees, agenis and aftorneys including former members, employees, agents and
attorneys, of, or from any liability, claim, actions, causes of action, fees, costs, expenses and
compensation, including, but not limited to, any claim for attorney's fees and expenses, whether or
not known ot contemplated, including, but not limited to, any claims pursuant to § 536.087, RSMo,
as amended, ot any claim arising under 42 U.S.C. § 1983, which now or in the future may be based
upon, arise out of, of relate to any of the matters raised in this case or its litigation, or from the
negotiation or execution of this Joint Stipulation, The parties acknowledge that this paragraph is
severable frqm the remaining portions of the Joint Stipulation in that it survives in perpetuity even in
the event that any court of law or administrative fribunal deems this agreement or any portion thereof
void or unenfoiceable.
1IL. CONCLUSION

In consideration of the foregoing, the parties consent to the entry of record and appsoval of
this Joint Stipulation and to the termination of any further proceedings before the Board based upon
the complaint filed in the above-captioned cause.

RESPONDENT ’ PETITIONER, Board of Cosmetology and
Batber Examiners
/j 7

Executive Director
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JONES, SCHNEIDER AND STEVENS,

LLC

f Py ey

'Tho’mm M. Schneider

F1 N. Seventh St,

Colunbia, Missouti 65201

Telaphone (573) 449~2451
1% 1~

Attorneys for Respondent '

Date
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P.C.
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Jamid J. Cox i J v Date
ast Cap venue
Jefferson City, Missowi 65102-0456

Telephone {§73) 635-7166
E-Mail: jcox@brydonlaw.com
Attorneys for Petitioner




